
 

 
 

Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County 
Meeting Agenda 

August 8, 2022 at 5:00 pm 
County Administration Building – Morris Room 

132 Main Street, Palmyra, VA  22963 
Public Access via Zoom 

 
 

I. Call to Order  
 

II. Approval of Minutes 
 July 11, 2022 
 
III.  Reports 

A. Treasurer’s Report [B. Hudson] 
B. Chair’s Report [R. Garcia] 
C. County Report  [J. Schmack] 
D.  EDTAC Report [L. Mastro] 
 

VI. Public Comments 
 
VII. Unfinished Business 
 
VIII. New Business 

A. Resolution to Approve Electronic Meetings Policy 
B. Proposed Amendments to Bylaws  
 

VIII. Adjourn 
 
 

Next Regular Meeting:   
September 12, 2022 at 5:00 pm 

County Administration Building – Morris Room 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81391678825?pwd=QU5yb2lDV3poajJTK2QyYmk5VWpTdz09


Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Administration Building, Meeting Minutes: July 11,2022 

Page 1 of 2 

Minutes of Meeting 
 

Monday July 11, 2022, 5:00 PM                                
 

Directors:       Joshua Bower (p) Valerie Palamountain (p) Ben Hudson(p) 
 Brittany Gray (p) Rudy Garcia (p)  Lois Mastro (p) 
  Lorretta Johnson-Morgan(p) 
 P – present, A- absent, Virtual-zero vote 

 Palamountain was virtual due to personal matter.       
    
Guests: Curtis Putnam, Mozell Booker 
  
 
County Staff: Douglas Miles(a), Eric Dahl(a), Jennifer Schmack(p) 
 

I.     Chair Rudy Garcia convened the assembly of EDA directors at 5:04 PM 
 
 II. Minutes Approved – May 2, 2022 minutes Hudson/Johnson-Morgan (4-0-2) 

Bower and Gray abstained 
  
 III. Treasure’s Report- Ben Hudson reported a balance of $26,924.17 as of 6/30/22 

reflecting $.57 interest earned and receipts of $1,000 from Soccer Organization of 
Charlottesville’s bond payment, $750 from Montessori School’s bond payment, and 
$1,210 from BOS annual adjustment and bank transfer fees. Hudson moved the EDA 
approve a $500 payment to the Virginia Department of Treasury for liability coverage 
from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022. Bower seconded (6-0).  Hudson moved the EDA 
approve a $950 payment to Valley Publishing to cover EDA’s ads published in the 
Fluvanna Review newspaper from November, 2021 to June, 2022. Johnson-Morgan 
seconded (6-0). Hudson presented the EDA proposed budget FY 2022-2023. Last 
year’s costs were $909; next year’s estimated costs, $3,440 with a projected income 
of $3970. Bower/ Johnson-Morgan (6-0). EDA has an annual $10 million bond 
authority.  

 
 IV. County Report – Jennifer Schmack announced two ribbon cuttings – Bump 2 Baby in 

Zion Crossroads and Fluvanna Firearms in Fork Union plus a fifth anniversary for 
Sacred Acres Farm and sixth anniversary for Cunningham Winery. The Quad County 
Summit will be October 12 at the Shenandoah Crossing Resort. In December, we will 
review Virginia Investment Pool.   

      
        V. Chair’s Report- Chair Garcia thanked Past President Curtis Putnam, for his service on 

the Board. Annual election of officers: for Chair, Rudy Garcia motioned by Johnson-
Morgan/Hudson (5-0-1); for Vice Chair, Valerie Palamountain motioned by 
Mastro/Bower (6-0); for Secretary, Lois Mastro motioned by Hudson/Johnson-
Morgan (6-0); for Treasurer, Ben Hudson motioned by Mastro/Johnson-Morgan (6-
0); and EDTAC representative Lois Mastro motioned by Bower/Hudson (6-0). 

 
     VI. Public Comment – BOS Mozell Booker commented on the clarity and depth of 

knowledge that Sandi McNinch’s excellent IDA/EDA 101: The Basics presentation 
was. 

   
     VII. New Business – Jennifer Schmack introduced Sandi McNinch General Counsel of the 

Virginia Economic Development Partnership who gave a presentation IDA/EDA 101: 
The Basics. Curtis Putnam presented IDEAS, a concept of providing children with 
study skills and knowledge for a successful life. Schmack stated we will be working 
on By-Laws and Rules of Procedure. 



Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Meeting Minutes: July 11,2022 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
 

Adjournment:  There being no further business to come before the Authority, the Chair 
adjourned the meeting at 7:52 PM. Motion to adjourn Bower/Johnson-Morgan (6-0). Next 
meeting is August 8, 2022 at 5:00 PM. 
 
 
Minutes Recorded by Lois Mastro. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 

Lois Mastro, Secretary 

 

 

 



 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A POLICY PERMITTING THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA,  

TO PARTICIPATE IN AUTHORITY MEETINGS SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONDITIONS PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE SECTION 2.2-3708.2 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Economic Development Authority 
of Fluvanna County, Virginia, finds it to be in the Authority, County, and public’s 
interests to adopt a policy wherein Directors may request and the Board may approve 
remote participation for medical or personal reasons; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Notice was provided at the Authority’s May 17, 2022, regular 
meeting of a proposed motion to adopt such a policy. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ON THIS 8th DAY OF AUGUST 
2022, that the Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia, 
hereby adopts the following Remote Electronic Participation Policy: 
 
Remote Electronic Participation 
 
 The Authority will permit an Authority member to participate in an 
 Authority meeting electronically from a remote location, provided that: 
 
 A. Notification to Chair of Inability to Attend Because of Disability, 

Medical Condition, or Personal Matter. On or before the day of the 
meeting, the Authority member shall notify the Chair that the member is 
unable to attend the meeting due to (i) a temporary or permanent disability 
or other medical condition that prevents the member’s physical attendance; 
ii) a family member’s medical condition that requires the member to 
provide care for such family member, thereby preventing the member’s 
physical attendance; or (iii) a personal matter and identifies with 
specificity the nature of the personal matter, such as a family event or 
business commitment. If the Chair is unable to attend, then the Chair must 
notify the Vice Chair and Assistant Secretary’s Office. 

 
 B. Quorum Physically Assembled; Approval of Remote Electronic 

Participation. A quorum of the Authority must be physically assembled 
at the primary or central meeting location. The Authority members present 
must approve the participation. However, the decision shall be based solely 
on the criteria in Section A without regard to the identity of the member or 
matters that will be considered or voted on during the meeting. 



 

C. Duty of Secretary to Record Action. If the Authority approves the 
member’s participation through electronic communication, the Secretary 
shall record in the Authority’s minutes the remote location from which the 
member participated, which need not be open to the public. If electronic 
participation is approved for a disability or medical condition, the minutes 
must simply state that fact. If electronic participation is approved for 
personal matter, the minutes must identify the specific nature of the 
personal matter cited by the member. If the absent member’s remote 
participation is disapproved because participation would violate this 
policy, the disapproval must be recorded in the Authority’s minutes with 
specificity. 

 
D. Audibility of Absent Member. The Chair or designee shall arrange for 

the voice of the absent Authority member to be heard by all persons in 
attendance at the meeting location. If, for any reason, the voice of the 
absent member cannot reasonably be heard, the meeting may continue 
without the participation of the absent member. 

 
E. Limitation on Remote Electronic Participation in Calendar Year. 

Electronic participation by the absent member as provided in this Rule for 
a personal reason shall not exceed two Authority meetings or 25 percent 
of the meetings held in a calendar year rounded up to the next whole 
number, whichever is greater. (Virginia Code § 2.2-3708.2) 

 
F. A member’s remote electronic participation, if approved by the Authority, 

is not considered an absence. 
 
G. This Policy is an adoption of Virginia Code Section 2.2.-3708.2(A) and 

(B) and is restated to fulfill the written policy requirement and for 
convenience. Future amendments to statutory provisions related to the 
conduct of meetings by remote electronic means are hereby incorporated 
mutatis mutandis without requiring formal action of the Authority. 

 
* * * * 
 
MOTION 
 
I move the Authority to adopt this Resolution as its written policy authorizing remote 
electronic participation. 



 

I, Rudy L. Garcia, do hereby certify that the foregoing writing is the Resolution duly 
adopted by the Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia, by 
a vote of ___ to ___ as recorded below, at a meeting held on August 8, 2022. 

  

______________________________ 
Rudy L. Garcia, Chair 

 

 

  AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT MOTION SECOND 
Rudy Garcia, Chair       
Valerie Palamountain, Vice Chair       
Lois Mastro, Secretary        
Ben Hudson, Treasurer       
Lorretta Johnson- Morgan       
Brittany Gray       
Joshua Bower       

 

 

 



 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND AND READOPT BYLAWS FOR THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPEMNT AUTHORITY OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia (the 
“Authority”) maintains Bylaws as authorized by Virginia Code § 15.2- 4905(10), which the 
Authority last readopted on June 20, 2011; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority finds it to be in the Authority’s, 
County’s, and public’s interests to amend and readopt the Bylaws; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Notice was provided at the Authority’s July 11, 2022 meeting of an intent 
to amend the Bylaws in this fashion according to Article VIII, Section 1, of such Bylaws. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ON THIS 8TH DAY OF AUGUST 2022, 
that the Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia, hereby amends its 
Bylaws of June 20, 2011. 

 
 

*    *    *    * 
 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by the Economic 
Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia, on this 8th day of August 2022. 

 

  AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT MOTION SECOND 
Rudy Garcia, Chair       
Valerie Palamountain, Vice Chair       
Lois Mastro, Secretary        
Ben Hudson, Treasurer       
Lorretta Johnson- Morgan       
Brittany Gray       
Joshua Bower       

 

 

Attest:  

 

_________________________ 
Rudy L. Garcia, Chair 
Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BYLAWS 
for 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
of FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
A political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, created 
by Ordinance under Chapter 12, Sections 12.1 and 12.2 
(amended) of the County Code, and with such public and 
corporate powers as are set forth in the Industrial Development 
and Revenue Bond Act, constituting Chapter 49, Subtitle IV of 
Title 15.2 of the Code of Virginia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Latest Amendments as of June 20, 2011August 
8, 2022 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 2 of 8  

BY-LAWS 
FOR 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF 

FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
ARTICLE I.  NAME AND OFFICES 

1. The name of this Authority shall be the ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA. 

2. Except as otherwise required by resolution of the Authority, or as 
the business of the Authority may require, all of the books and 
records of the Authority shall be kept at the office to be designated 
by the directors of said Authority. The minutes of the Authority 
shall be open and available for public inspection at all times during 
normal business hours, and copies of the said minutes may be 
ordered by any citizen upon submission of a written request and 
upon paying in advance the cost of duplicating such copies. 

 
ARTICLE II.  PURPOSES AND POWERS 

The Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia, 
shall fulfill all the purposes and intents of the General Assembly of 
Virginia, as expressed in Chapter 49, Subtitle IV of Title 15.2 of the 
Code of Virginia. (Min. Bk. 6, p. 445; Comp. 1974, ch. 14), and by any 
other enactment that may hereafter be adopted by the General 
Assembly. Said Authority shall also fulfill all purposes and intents of 
the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia, as may 
hereafter be provided and the general purpose of the Authority shall 
be to promote industry and develop trade in the area within its 
jurisdiction for the general good of the people of said area and of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. The authority shall have any and all 
powers that have been granted to it by the Acts of Assembly of 
Virginia, aforesaid, and the powers that may hereafter be granted to it 
by any enactment of the General Assembly and, also, those powers 
that may be granted to it by any delegation of authority hereafter 
granted by the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia. 

 
ARTICLE III.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

1. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed 
of seven (7) directors, appointed by the Board of Supervisors of 
Fluvanna County.  All powers of the Authority shall be vested in 
the Board of Directors. 

2. The seven initial directors shall serve for terms of one, two, three, 
and four years; two for one year terms; two for two year terms; 
two for three year terms; and, one for a four year term, all as 
appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County; 
subsequently terms shall be for four years, except where there 
have been appointments to fill vacancies in which case the terms 
shall be for the unexpired terms. 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 3 of 8  

3. No Director shall be an officer or employee of the County of 
Fluvanna, Virginia. Directors shall receive no salary, but shall be 
reimbursed for necessary traveling and other expenses incurred in 
the performance of their duties, subject to the approval of the 
Board of Directors. 

4. The Board of Directors shall have the right to prepare, or delegate 
the preparation of, confidential reports for submission to any 
person, governmental body or agency consistent with the 
purposes and powers stated in ARTICLE II; and the right to receive 
from any source confidential reports consistent with the purposes 
and powers stated in said ARTICLE II; but no action binding the 
Authority may be taken respecting such reports except by action 
of the Board of Directors. 

 
ARTICLE IV. OATH OF DIRECTORS 

Each director shall, before entering on his duties, take and subscribe 
the oath prescribed by Section 49-1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, 
which shall be administered in accordance with law. 

 
ARTICLE V. OFFICERS 

1. The Board of Directors shall elect from its membership a 
Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, a Secretary, and a Treasurer or a 
Secretary-Treasurer. 

2. The terms of office for the officers shall be one year each, 
commencing on the third second Monday in JuneJuly, each 
year, and shall continue until their successors are elected. 

3. The duties of the Chairman shall be to preside at meetings of the 
Board of Directors and at meetings of the Executive Committee; to 
prepare the agenda for any and all meetings, and to make a copy of 
the said agenda available to the Secretary for the purpose of 
providing adequate notice of special meetings as hereinafter 
provided; to call special meetings; to call special elections; to be 
ex-officio a member of all committees; to sign, with the Secretary 
or Treasurer, or any other proper officer of the Authority 
thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, any documents or 
instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be 
executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof 
shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by the 
by-laws to some other officer of the Board of Directors, or shall be 
required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general 
shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chairman and such 
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from 
time to time.  The Chairman shall have an equal vote with the 
other directors, and shall not have a second tie-breaking vote on 
any question. 

4. The duties of the Vice-Chairman shall be to preside at meetings on 
the request of the Chairman, or in the absence of the Chairman; 
and in case of the death or resignation of the Chairman shall 
become Chairman for the remainder of the term for which the 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 4 of 8  

Chairman was elected. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice- 
Chairman shall perform the duties of the Chairman, and when so 
acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the 
restrictions upon the Chairman. The Vice-Chairman shall perform 
such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors 
from time to time. 

5. The Secretary or the Secretary-Treasurer in his capacity as 
Secretary shall be responsible for the preparation of the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive 
Committee, kept in a record book and made available for public 
inspection at all times; to have custody of all important records of 
the Authority; to have custody of the seal of the Authority and to 
see that the seal of the Authority is affixed to all documents or 
instruments, the execution of which on behalf of the Authority 
under its seal is duly authorized by the Board of Directors; to sign 
with the Chairman or Vice-Chairman any documents or 
instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be 
executed; to see that all notices are duly given as required by law, 
these by-laws or by the Board of Directors; to call meetings of the 
Board of Directors to order in the absence of the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman and thereupon to conduct an election for a 
temporary presiding officer for that meeting; and in general to 
perform all the duties incident of the office of Secretary and such 
other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of 
Directors. In the absence of the Secretary, the Chairman shall 
appoint a director to be responsible for the preparation of detailed 
minutes of the meeting. 

6. The Treasurer or the Secretary-Treasurer in his capacity as 
Treasurer shall be responsible for the keeping of suitable records 
of all financial transactions of the Authority; to have charge and 
custody of all funds and be responsible for their investment and 
deposit in the name of the Authority when authorized by the 
Board of Directors; and in general to perform all the duties 
incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from 
time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors. The Board 
of Directors may require the Treasurer or the Secretary-Treasurer 
to give bond in such a sum as may from time to time be fixed by 
resolution, payable to the Authority and to the County of Fluvanna, 
as their interests may appear, with corporate surety authorized to 
act as such in the State of Virginia, premium on which bond is to be 
paid as an expense of the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE VI. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

1. The regular election of officers shall be held at the regular annual 
meeting to be held on the third second Monday in June July of 
each year as hereinafter provided in Paragraph 1 of ARTICLE VII. 

2. Special elections may be held at any regular or special meeting in 
order to fill vacancies or to fill newly created offices, but only after 
specific notice, as hereinafter provided for, has been given. 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 5 of 8  

ARTICLE VII.  MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS 
1. Annual Meeting. An annual or regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors for the election of officers and for the transaction of such 
other business as may properly come before such meeting shall be 
held in the County of Fluvanna, Virginia, on the third second 
Monday in June July of each year, at such place and at such time as 
shall be stated in the notice of the meeting or in the waiver of 
notice thereof.  If for any reason an annual meeting is not held or if 
the election of officers shall not be held at any annual meeting or 
any adjournment thereof, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman shall 
cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Board of 
Directors as soon thereafter as conveniently may be and any 
business transacted or elections held at such meeting shall be as 
valid as if transacted at the annual meeting. 

2. Other Regular Meetings. Other regular or regularly scheduled 
meetings of the Board of Directors, if any, may be held at such time 
and place in the County of Fluvanna, Virginia as shall be from time 
to time be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of 
Directors. 

3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may 
be held in the County of Fluvanna, Virginia whenever called by the 
Chairman, the Vice-Chairman or any two directors. Whenever any 
two directors, not including the Chairman or Vice-Chairman 
request a special meeting they shall provide the Secretary or the 
Secretary-Treasurer with a written statement of the business to be 
considered for the purpose of providing adequate notice. 

3.4. Electronic Meeting Participation.  A director may participate in a 
meeting of the Board through electronic communications from a 
remote location that is not open to the public as provided in Code 
of Virginia § 2.2-3708.2 subject to the policy adopted by the Board of 
Directors on August 8, 2022. 

4. Notice of Meetings. Two days’ written notice of all regular or 
special meetings of the Board of Directors stating the time and 
place and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose thereof, 
shall be given by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, or 
Secretary-Treasurer by mailing the same to each director at his 
residence or business address or by electronic mail to such 
address or by delivering the same to him personally. If mailed, 
such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the 
United States mail so addressed with postage prepaid. If notice is 
given by electronic mail , such notice shall be deemed to be 
delivered when the electronic mail message is timestamped by the 
sender’s electronic mail provider, provided that each Director’s 
correct mailing address is included in the header section of the 
email. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no notice need be given to hold a legally 
constituted meeting, regular or special, if all of the directors are present. 

5. Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given to 
any director of any meeting under these by-laws, a waiver thereof 
in writing signed by all of the directors, whether before or after 
the time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such 
notice. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0", Right: 
0.61", Space Before:  5.85 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple
0.85 li, Tab stops:  0.83", Left



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 6 of 8  

The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a 
waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 7 of 8  

attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the 
transaction of any business because the meeting was not 
lawfully called or convened. 

6. Quorum. Four members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a 
quorum of the Board for the purpose of conducting its business 
and exercising its powers and for all other purposes, except that 
no facilities owned by the Authority shall be leased or disposed of 
in any manner without a majority vote of the members of the 
Board of Directors. No vacancy in the membership of the Board 
shall impair the right of a quorum to exercise all of the powers and 
perform all of the duties of the Board. 

6.7. Election of a Temporary Presiding Officer. When a quorum is present for a 
regularly scheduled or specially called meeting and the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman are absent, a majority of the quorum in attendance may elect a 
temporary presiding officer to chair that meeting, only. When the meeting 
is chaired by a temporary presiding officer, a quorum must be present to 
proceed and the quorum must remain in attendance throughout the entire 
meeting. The election of a temporary presiding officer to chair a specific 
meeting for which the Chairman and Vice Chairman are not available will 
not in any way whatsoever, invalidate or restrict the actions, directives or 
the Authority of the duly elected Chairman and Vice Chairman. 

7.8. Order of Business. At all meetings of the Authority, the following 
order of business shall be observed, as far as consistent with the 
purpose of the meeting: 

(a) Reading and approval of the minutes of the preceding 
meeting. 

(b) Reports of officers. 
(c) Reports of Committees. 
(d) Unfinished business. 
(e) New business. 
(f) Closed session. 
(e)(g) Adjournment. 

8.9. Meetings to be open to Public. Formal action shall be taken by the 
Board of Directors only at open sessions and such meetings shall 
be open to the public. 

9.10. Voting. The vote on the adoption of every resolution, any 
proposals creating a liability, or for the appropriation or 
expenditure of funds shall be by yeas or nays, and whenever the 
vote is not unanimous, the names of members voting for and of 
those voting against such action shall be entered upon the 
minutes. 

10.11. Procedure. Unless otherwise provided, procedure at 
meetings shall follow Robert’s Rules of Order. 

11.12. Signing of Minutes. When approved, all minutes of 
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be signed by the 
Secretary and the presiding officer of the particular meeting. 

 
ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES 

1. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the Chairman, 
Vice-Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer, or Secretary-Treasurer 

Formatted: Right:  0", Space Before:  5.95 pt, Tab
stops: Not at  0.83"



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 8 of 8  

of the Authority. The Executive Committee shall meet at such 
times and such places as the Chairman may designate. The 
Secretary shall keep detailed minutes of the meetings of the 
Executive Committee which shall be preserved along with the 
minutes of the Board of Directors and read to the Board of 
Directors at its next meeting. 
Three (3) members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a 
quorum to transact business, unless the offices of Secretary and 
Treasurer are held by one individual, in which case, two (2) 
members shall constitute a quorum. In the absence of any 
member of the Executive Committee, the Chairman may but need  



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 9 of 8  

not appoint one other director to act on the Executive Committee 
as a member pro tempore, and to be counted as a member of such 
committee for the purpose of constituting a quorum, and such 
appointment shall be recorded in the record book of the Authority. 

2. Any action taken by the Executive Committee shall be tentative 
and advisory only and shall be subject to approval by the Board of 
Directors. 

3. The Chairman may, with the advice and consent of the Board of 
Directors, appoint such special committees as may be deemed 
appropriate to carry out the intents and purposes of the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE IX. STAFF 

1. The Board of Directors shall employ and compensate such 
employees and agents, including attorneys, as it deem necessary in 
carrying on the business of the Authority. 

2. The employees and agents of the Authority may prepare and 
submit confidential reports and recommendations to the Board of 
Directors, but no action binding on the Authority shall be taken 
respecting such reports except as provided in ARTICLE III. 

 
ARTICLE X. OFFICIAL SEAL 

The official seal of the Authority shall consist of a disc having 
engraved or impressed upon it the following words and figures: 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF FLUVANNA COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA - 1970. 

 
ARTICLE XI. FISCAL YEAR 

The fiscal year of the Authority shall begin at 12:01 AM on July 1 
and end at 12:00 Midnight on June 30 of the following year. 
 

ARTICLE XII. RULES AND REGULATIONS 
The Board of Directors may adopt, amend and alter from time to time such 
rules, regulations, or forms which it may deem necessary or expedient for 
the management of the affairs of the Authority and which shall not shall be 
inconsistent with the Act. The Secretary of the Authority shall maintain 
current copies of all rules, regulations, and forms adopted by the 
Authority, which shall be available for public inspection at all times at the 
office of the Economic Development Authority. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE XIII. AMENDMENTS 

Except as otherwise provided by law, these by-laws may be amended, 
added to, altered, or repealed in whole or in part by the Board of Directors 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.88", Right:  0", Space
Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 10 of 
 

 

at any meeting of the Board of Directors, provided that notice of the 
proposed amendment, addition, alteration, or repeal is given in the notice 
of the call of such meeting, and such notice is given in the manner 
provided in ARTICLE VII, Paragraph 4, not less than one week prior to the 
holding of such meeting.  Any director may waive written notice. 



BYLAWS: Economic Development Authority of Fluvanna County, Virginia 
Amended: June 20, 2011August 8, 2022 

Page 11 of 
 

 

 

RECORD OF AMENDMENTS 
 
 

December 12, 1974: 
ARTICLE XI: Fiscal Year changed to read: “June 30 until July 1 of the following 
year.” 

October 15, 2008: 
Throughout: Name changed from Industrial Development Authority…… to 
Economic Development Authority, as requested by the Authority; and 

ARTICLE II:  References to County Code and Code of Virginia updated; 

All in accordance with an Ordinance adopted by the Fluvanna County Board of 
Supervisors. 

June 20, 2011: 
Title Page: Added 

ARTICLE VII, Paragraph 4: Telegraph deleted as a vehicle for notifying the 
Board of Directors of meetings; Replaced by electronic mail. 

ARTICLE XI: Fiscal year changed to begin at 12:01 AM on July 1 and end at 
12:00 Midnight on June 30 of the following year. 

RECORD of AMENDMENTS: Added. 

 

August 8, 2022: 

 ARTICLE V, Paragraph 2: Changed from third to second Monday in July 

 ARTICLE VI. Paragraph 1: Changed from third to second Monday in July 

 ARTICLE VII. Paragraph 1: Changed from third to second Monday in July 

 ARTICLE VII. Paragraph 4: Added Electronic Meeting Participation 

 ARTICLE VII. Paragraph 8: Added Election of a Temporary Presiding Officer. 

 ARTICLE VII. Paragraph 9: Added (f) Closed Session  

 ARTICLE VII. Paragraph 9: Added (g) Adjournment 

 ARTICLE XII.: Added Rules and Regulation 

 
 
 
 
 Adopted by Resolution of the Board of Directors on August 8, 2022. 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Rudy L. Garcia, Chair 
 

 

 

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Underline


	EDA Agenda 8-8-22
	EDA 2022-7-11 minutes
	Resolution - EDA Electronic Meeting Policy
	Resolution - Amend and Readopt Bylaws
	EDA By-laws - Fluvanna County - REDLINED
	BYLAWS


